UNITED NATIONS

ECONOMIC
AND
SOCIAL COUNCIL

NATIONS UNIES

CONSEIL R
ECONOMIQUE 345aeaisa/ee
ET SOCIAL

UNRESTRICTED

ORIGINAL: INGLISH

COMMISSION ONH/MAN nIGHTS
SECOND SESSION

SUMIARY RECORD OF FORTYSECORD MEETLNG

Held at the Palais

des Nations, Geneva, on Tuesday,

16 December, 1947 at 9 p.m.

Present:

Chairman:

Rapporteur:
Members:

Secretariat:

Speclalized Agencies:
Nom«Bovernuental

Organizations:
Category A:

Category B:

Mrs. Franklin D. Roosevelt (United
States of Anerica)

Dr, Charles Malik (Labanon)

Col. W.R. Hodgson (Australiia)

Mr. F. Dehousse (Belgium)

Mr. A.S. Ster-nenko /Byelorussian
S.S.H.)

Dr. C.H. Wu (Chira) (Alternate)

Mr. C. Loucfi (Egypt) (Alternate)

Mr. R. Cassin (France)

Mrs. Hansa Meixta (India)

Mr. A.G. Pourevaly (Iran)

Mr. M. .lekovkin (Ukranian S.S.R.)

Mi. A.E. Bogomolov (U.S.S.R.)

Lord Dukeston (United Kingdom)

Mr, J.J.C. Victorica (Uruguay)
(Alternate)

Dr. V. Ribnikar (Yugoslavia)

Prof. J.P. Humphrey
Mr. E. Lawson

Mr, J, de Givry (1.L.O.)

Miss Tonl Sender (American
Federation of Labor)

Mr. Vanistondael (International Feder-
ation of Chiristian Trade Unions)

Mr. F.0, Nolde (Cormission of the
' Churches on International
Affairs)

Mr. J.F. Ennals (World Federation of
U.N. Associations)

Mr. Rigner (World Jewish Congress)

Mr. Weill (Co-ordinating Board of
Jewish Organizations)



Page 2

1. Consideration of the Report of the Workingy Group on the
Convention (Document E/CN.4/50) {(Continued)

Artilclie 5
The CHAIRMAN put Article 5 to the vote; 1t was adopted by

N

9 vetes, with 3 abstentions,

ticle 20
12 C. AIRMAN explained that this Article was a suggestion that

v

e
3

|

T

-

had been nmade by the United States Observer but which had not
been adopted by the Working Group. She requsasted that the
following statement of her Government's views should be inserted
as a comment in the Beport: "The United States believes that
the Drafting Committee should seriously consider whether it is
not better t» have one overall limitation clause than to try to
spell out cvery possible limitation in each Article,”

She sald that the reprosentative of the American Federation
of Labor had asked that the followinz statement on Article 20
be made on her bchalfs "In beth docun.nts, the Declaration
as well as the Convention, is a gencral clause taking care of
the 1limitations or all Articles. In the Decloration it is
Article 37 on pa.,c 17, and in the Convention it is Article 20

12. Tho wording of both drafts on this point differs.

A -~ o 3 ‘ . :
As the clause is not ncant te opon loopholes, may I suszgest

on. -hnt offers less chance for loopholes, namely Article 20 of
the Convention on page 12,"

Mr. WU (China) asked that nis name should be ins.rted in the
Report, as supnorting tue comzent of the United States,

Mr., C.SSIN (france) asked that the following corment regurding
Article 20 b inserted in the Roport: "In the opinion of the French
Delegetion, 1t 1s essenti-l that the problenm of a general clause

defining the linitations of the rights and freedons e1bodied in the



Convention should be considered. The text of such a clause
remains to be drafted."

Col.. HODGSON (Australia) said he was unable to understand
why the suggestion for a-general limitation clause which would
avoid the necessity for detailed limitations in each of the
substantive Articles had not been made before Article 20 was
reached,

Mr, MALIK (Lebanon) pointed out that the majority of the
Werking Group had favoured the view that a general limitation
clause was dangerous, in that it might afford opportunities
for abuse. On the other hand, the United States Delegation
had a right to ask that its views be included in the Report.
There was in reality no Article 203 there was only a United
States suggestion that a general limitation article should be
included in the Convention at that point.

The CHAIRMAN stated, for the information of representatives,
that when the Articles of Implementation were finally prepared
they would appear in the Convention after Article 3.

Mrs. MEHTA (India) enquired why the social rights were
not mentioned in Part II of the Convention.

Mr. MALIK (Lebanon), in reply, pointed out that the
Convention had not been prepared in final form and could not
therefrre be considered as embodying every righ* and freedom.
The representative of India, however, was free to make
suggestions for Articles on social rights, either for inclusion
in the Cenvention under discussion cr in a further Ccnvantion
to be prepared, if she desired to do so.

Mr. DEHOUSSE (Belgium), in connection with the point
raised by the representative of India, recalled *that Liis
Delegation had made a suggestion earlier in the Session that

there should be several Conventions on Human Rights. One of



E/CN.4/SR/42
page

those proposed was a Convention on economic and social rights,
without which, in his opinion, no freedoms could exist in the
world of to-day.

Lord DUKESTON (United Kingdom) requested that the
following comment on Article 20 should be inserted.in the Report:
"The United Kingdom considers that nothing is more likely to
bring the Convention and the United Nations intc discredit than
the production of a Conventinn rendered ipnccuouc by a general
limitation clause which would peiwit w.y signatiry to continue
all the abuses at present existing in its country.

"In the view of the United Kingdom the only way to achieve
progress 1s by a fairly tightly drawn Convention which would

'prespribe as precisely as possible the limitations permissible
in respect of each separate right and freedom.

"We appreciate that a Convention in so precise s form will
not be easy to achieve but we believe that it 1s well within
the bounds of possibility and abundantly worth the effort to
achieve 1it.

"It might well be that only a limited number of meabers of
the United Nations would subscribe immediately tc such a
Conventidn and it might not come into force for some tiie, but,
when it did come into force, it would regis’ter great progress.
Moreover, once such a Convention wes in existence, there would
be certain pressure on backward members who had not acceded to
it to begin with, to put their house in order."

Mr. VICTORICA (Uruguay) wished to be rzcorded in the Report
as supporting the United States comment on Article 20, While he
favoured the insertion of a general limitation clause, ae did not
feel that specific limitatioas regarding each Article should be
excluded.

- Lord DUKESTON (United Kingdom) proposed that a new
Article shonld be inserfed after Article 3 (E/CN.%/65).



B/UN. 3/ oy <
page 5

He felt that, if such a provision were not included,
in time of war it might leave the way open for a State to
suspend the provisions of the Convention. His Government
thought it most important that steps should be taken to guard
against sﬁch an eventuality.

The CHAIRMAN stated that the United States opposed the
proposed Article. No provisidn for suspensionvof the
Convention in time of war should be made, as, in her opinion,
if might encourage violations‘of rights. The United Nations
was an organizatioﬁ esfablished with the‘object of preventing
war; she did not feel, therefore, that an Articlé in which
the possibility of war was implicit should be includeq. |

Mr. DEHOUSSE (Belgiﬁm)‘said he would support the
United Kingdom proposal if the words "or other public
emergency" in line 1 were deleted. He éohsidered,such
a reference to be obscure and also dangerous, as it might leave
the determination_Cf what constituﬁed a public emergency to
the State concerned. He supported the proposal otherwise
because he felt that it was inevitable that certain rights
should be limited in time of war, ‘N

Lord DUKESTON (United Kingdom) said he was not prepared
to accept the Belgian amendment.,

The CHAIRMAN therefore put the Belgian amendment to
the vote, It was rejected by one vote to one and

5 abstentions.

The United Kingdom prqposal was accepted by 4 votes
to 3, with 8 abstentions.



E/CN.%/SR/42
page 6

Article 21

The CHAIRYAN wished to make a comment suggesting
the deletion of the following words from paragraph 3 of the
Article: ”and by a solemn declaration made by the
Government of the State concerned that full and complete
effect to the provisions of Part II is given by the law of
that State."

Mr. LOUFTI (Egypt) wished the CHAIR 'AN's suggestion

to be considered as an amendment and put to the vote, He

the same time as they deposited the instrument of accession
as it was only after ratifying the Convention that they would
begin to bring their legislation into conformity with it.

Mr. DEHOUSSE (Belgium) proposed that the whole
paragraph be deleted. He thought that its provisions were
useless both from a legal and a peclitical point of view, as
it was always understood that when a State ratified a
Convention it intended to put its provisions into effect.

The CHAIRMAN put td the vote the Belgian proposal that
the whole of paragraph 3 be deleted., The proposal was
adopted by 8 votes to 1, with 6 abstentions.

The CHAIRMAN put paragraphs 1 and 2 of Article 21
to the vote, The Article was adopted by 10 votes, with

5 abstentions,

Article 22

The CHAIRMAN put the Article to the vote; 1t was
adopted by 10 votes, with 5 abstentions. ’



Article 23
The CHAIRMAN put the Article to the votey it was adopted

by 11 votes, with 2 abstentions.
Article 2k |
| Mr. CASSIN (France) stated that he would abstain from
voting as the Article raised the question of the legal nature
of the Conventioh; His Delegatioh wished toreser#e its
position on that point until the relationship between the
Declaration and the Convention had been clearly established,
Mr, DEHQUSSE (Belgium) supported the inclusion of the
Article. He pointed out that it was cuétoﬁary to include
such Articles in all International Conventions andAhe thought
that it was essentialrtijrOVide for amendments which might
be necéssary in the future.
The CHAIRMAN put the Article to the vote; it was

adopted by 7 voles, with 7 abstentions.

P

Article 25

he CHAIRMAN read the United States proposal to amend
Article 25 to read:

"In nongtruing the Articles of this Bill of Rights,
the several Articles shall bé regarded in their relation to
each other.! -

As there were no observations she put the amendment
to the vots; it was adopted by‘lO votes, with 5 abstentions.

New Article Proposed by the Representative of ngahon

X Y i

Mr. MALTK (Lebanon) proposed adding the following
Article at the end of the Convention (E/CN.,4/75):
"Nothing in this Coavention shall be considered to

give any State or person the right to engage. in any activity



page o

aimed at the destruction of any of the rights and freedoms
prescribed herein.”

He pointed out that a similar Article had been adopted
for the Declaration.

Mr. VICTORICA (Uruguay) said that he would abstain
from voting because other provisions which were accepted
by most Member Governments in theilr Constitutions had not
been adopted by the Commission. He thought that the
Convention shoula have included a general limitation clause
and a statement to the effect that the laws regulating the
exercise of rights should not be used to deprive people of
those rights.

_ The CHAIRMAN put the Lebanese proposal to the vote;

it was adopted by 7 votes with 8 abstentions.

Draft Resolution on Minor Communal Services (page 15)

Lord DUKESTON (United‘Kingdom) supported the draft
resolution and mentioned that the governing body of the
I.L.0. would be holding a meeting in March and would there-
- fore have time to submit its opinion before the next session
of the Commission.

Mr., DE GIVRY (ILO) pointed out that his organization
was still béund by the prowvisions of the Forced Labour
Convention of 1930. The governing body of the ILO would
be pleased to study the subject at its meeting in March,

The CHAIRMAN put the Draft Resolution to the vote;
it was adopted by 10 votes, with 4 abstentions.

The CHAIRMAN invited the Commission to d ecide on the
name to be given to the Convention. She recalled that in
the course of the discussions certain delegatlions had proposed

the terms Bill, Convention and Covenant.



Col. HODGSON (Australia) was in favour of the term
Bill of Human Rights, since that was the term which had been
employed in the General Assembly, the Economic and Social
Council, the War Crimes Commission and the Human Rights
Commission itself, Furthesrmore, that term was employed con-
stantly in the Nuremberg doctrine. His chief reason, however,
was that "Bill" was the word used in the Commission's terms of
reference,

T+ WU (China) regarded the term "Bill" as so sacred
that he would like it to cover the threefold aspects of the
Commission's work: the Convention, the Declaration and Imple-
mentation. He would -agree to the term "Bill" (in French
"Charte") being used for that triptych, but would vote ageainst
that title if 1t were used solely for the Convention,

Mr., DEHOUSSE (Belgium) recalled that he had already pro=
posed the term "Pacte" (in English "Covenant"). He was opposed
to "Convention'" which was a nondescript term applied to the most
diverse instruments. Nor could he accept the term "Bill" as
there was no French, Russian or Spanish translation for it.

He understood that in English the word "3Bill" moeant an instru-
ment of nrtional law. But this was an international instrument.
io formally moved thtt the Convontion be called the "Covenant

on Human Rights", not only for the negative reason that the othaer
terms dld mot seem to him to have any special maritbut also for the
positive reason that a Covenant set a seal on frizndly relations
betweon States ~nd was applicable to politicnl as well as to
securlity ~nd mutunl assistance agreemants between Stotes. What
were Human Hights but a form of security and mutual assistance
among men? He was catsegorically opposed to thae term "Charte"
(English "Bill"), which held bitter memories for nll the countries

of Western furope. He. was sorry, moreover, that the term in



E/CN.4/SR/42
page 10

question had been chosen for the basic document of the United
Nations. In point of fact, a "Chorte!" was not obtained by the
paople, but gronted to tham by a King endowed with Divine fight
who consented to recnounce some of his sovercign rights.

Mr. CASSIN (#rance) stated that, at the present stage of
its work, the Commission should give the various instruments
their appropriate technical names., He proposed that the Con-
vention be called a Conv.ntion and the Dcclaration, a Dgclaration.
It was impossible for the Convention to bec termed a "Bill" He
recalled thet when the Prcsident of the United States referred
ot the San francisco Assembly to a "Bill of Rights", he was
thinking of a Declaration to be ainexed to the United Nations
Charter. The Economic and Social Council itself, when it had
‘examinced the Commission's terms of reference, had mcntioned a
"Bill" in the seanse of a Dcclaration.

He asked the Coimission to leave the question of names
open. Hec would grce to the Convention being called a '"Covenant',
since it would thereby gain in solemnity and since it was to
serve as a model for other agreements.,

Mr. LOUTFI (Bgypt) supported the Ffrench representative's
remarks.,

Mr. VICTORICA (Uruguay) agreed with the representative of

France that the Convention should be called a Convention and the

Declaration a Deg¢laration. He recalled, however, that at all the
-American Conferences on Human Rights, particularly the Mexico
Conference, 1t was agreed, having regard to the terminology of

the United Nations Ch-rter, that the Declarrtion should have

the legal character of a Convention between States.



E/CH.4/SR/42
page 11

Mr. BOGOMOLOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) pointed
out for the Commission's informaticn that in Russian the word
"Bill" had the meaning of '"English law" and the term "Charter!
also the meaning of "English law" but with a wider'SCOpe. The
terms "Convention" and "Covenant" were broad legal expressions,
used for agreements between States. Lastly, there was the word

"Treaty" which was the most commonly used in Russian.

Dr. MALIK (Lebanon) observed that the Commission could not
‘disregard the terminology contained in its turms’of reference and
should therefore use the word "Bill" somewhere. He recalled that
that was the term used by the Nuclear Commission in the Economiec
and Social Council, when thé question of the Commission's terms
of refercnce was being discussed, énd on a second occasion when
those terms of reference were revised, Hé would agree to cail
the Declaration a "Declaration" and the Convention a MCovenant!
as Professor Dehousse had prdposed, and agreed to Dr. Wu's
proposal that the whole colleétion of instruments'should bé called
the YBill",

The CHAIRMAN invited the Commission to vote successively
on the proposals made by the delegations of Australia, China;

Belgium and France,

Mr, DEHOUSSE (Belgium) wished to clear up a point connected
with the voting procedure. He noted that ﬁhe Chairman was putting
four proposals to the vote in a chronological order which rested
solely on chance. In his view the Lebanese répresentative's}

proposal was a compromisce proposal for which he requested priority.

Dr. WU (China) seconded the Lebanese representative's

proposal.



E/CN.4/SR/42
page 12

The CHAIRMAN accordingly put to the vote the Sino-Lebanese
proposal that the Declaration be called a Declaration, the
Convention a Covgnant and the whole thing a Bill ("Charte").

Decision: This proposal was adopted by four votes to gne with
five abstentions,

The CHAIRMAN put the document as a whole to the vote, under

the name "Covenant",.

Mr. BOGOMOLOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) stated
that at the outset of the Commission's work, the Soviet delegation
had emphasised that its primary task was to make a careful and
serious study of the draft Declaration., Only an effective
discussion of essential human rights could provide a satisfactory
foundation for subsequent work in other fields, such as the
elaboration of a Convention or other International undertakings.
The Sbviet delegation still considered that to be the main task
of the Qommiésion, which should endeavour to define what it
meant by "Human Rights' and what that concept comprised, In the
course of the discussion on fhose rights, the Soviet delegation
had laid emphasis bn the simplest and most essential of them:
the right to work, leisure, education, social gecurlty and the
inviolability of the human person. Unfortunately, the greatest
difficulties had arisen in connection with precisely those
essential rights, In the draft Convention, in whose elaboration
the Soviet delegation had been unable to take part, there were no
detailed provisions concerning the fundamental rights of concern
to tke comumon man, e.g. the right to work, to education, to
soclal security, on which there had been no discussion. The
Soviet delegation therefore asked for the following note to be
recorded in the Report: "The Soviet delegation considers that the



drafting of a Cow.vention is premature before the end of the work
on the preparation of a text of a Declaration on Human Rights

and before discussion of the opinion of the Governments on this
Declaration, For these reasons, 1t will vote against taking any

decision on the acceptance of this document."

Mr., DEHOUSSE (Belgium) reninded the Cormission and the
Soviet representative that the proposed Convention did not exhaust
the subject. It was only the first of a series and siiould not be
found fault witin because it concained oniy a linited number of
stipulations. For its part, the Belgian delegation was determined
to press for it to be followed by other Conventions ermmerating
other rights, particularly the economic and sccial rights on which
it had laid emphasis in the early stages of the rresent session.
He would like this staterient to appear in the surmary record.
He had no wishy hchver, to regard the Soviet representative's
statenent as holding out no hope. The latter had merely pointed
cul that he regarded the drafting of a Convention as prenaturece.
It was therefore only a question of a difference of opinion as to

tining, not a final rejection,

Mr. CASSIN (France) stated that the French delegation would
vote for the draft Convention. Since June it had been of the
opinion that the methods of a Declaration and a Convention could
be enployed sirmultaneously by the Comiaissici in “rafting the
docurient 1t was preparing. The first draft Convention now before
the Commission offered a good illustration of that method, If the
Commission had tried tc draw up a Convention covering rights less
univercally recognized, it might have hcen accused of imprudence.
Future conveiitions should be drawn up slowly and carefully with
the assistance of experts. The French delegation would vote for the

proposed Convention, as a preface to other Conventions.



noge i’

Dr, RIBNIKAR (Yugoslavia) explained that he stood by the
statenent he had made befeore the Working Group on the Convention,
as sunnarised in the Working Group's Report. The Yugoslav

delegation would vote against the proposed Convention,

Lord DUKESTON (United Kingdor) stated that the British
delegation would support the draft Convention. He admitted it
to be incomplote, but in the sense indicated by the Soviet
representetivets ceriticisms, he thovrght that in the nathre of
things it could not be otherwise. However, it covered
fundamental freedons without which social security measures could
not teke shape unless they were imposed by a philanthropic State,
the awarenass of those freedoms and rights not having had the

chance to develop freely in the minds of ren, It could be said,

L.de

therafore, thot econcmic -nd cooinl rizhts and social sccurity

’

rested privarily on the affirmation of freedom of speech and the
righ*t of association. Hence tne first essential was to lay the
foundations of the elementary frecdoms. There was always a

great tewptation to criticise a draft for its onissions, but

s

e covld ha no £ianl to-rt, T€ tvo rigntc and frecdonic procicine

10T

ot

N

ed in the pres nt Bill becane a reality, they would contribute

to the gradunl estoablishnent of the other freedoms. Therefore

he considered that in the time allowed it the Commiission had done
exceliont worl. It could not be decumcd t- nave formzlated all
the rightes and freecdons concerning mankind, bul its task was to,
draw vp a text of worlcd-wide application, That text had not been
drawn up for States where the practicc of such ficcedoms had becone
castocaary, It was Intended to be applied more esnceially in
arcas wraere those rights were still only partially reeognized,

One of the Jdccumynis drawn up defined an ideal, In order to

extond the fiold of human rights, the Commission haé begun by



laying down the fundanental rights, which would become weapons

in the battle for freedon. In no denccratic country had freedon
devdloped otherwise, Human rights developed primafily through
the reccgnition of freedom of speech, then they passed into law,
Each of those rights, in order to be clearly understood and
effective, had to be drawn up when the time was ripe. It was
better to teach the common man how democracy worked than to
regard him as a child and impose certain rules on hin, Such

an attitude night hear some resemblance to dictatorship systenms.,
The world needed free men and not well-fed slaves. Therefore,
in developing human'rights, it was necessary to begin by
proclaining freedom of speech, freedonm of association and freedon
of thought. Without these fundamental freedoms, human rights
could nct be developed. It was in that spirit ne hoped that the
Commission had drawn up a Convention covering the fundanental
freedons, so as gradually to bring them to the knowledge of those

who did not yet enjoy then,

The CHAIRMAN stated that the United States delegation had
always been in favour of drawing up a Declaraticn and a nunber

of Conventions.

Mr. LOUTF1 (Egypt) stated that he would vote for the draft
Convention. Although it covered only the nost elenentary rights,
he hoped 1t would be possible to supplenent it later hy a nunber
of other instruzents. He urged that, when the text was subnitted
to the Governuents for their observations, the Scecretariat should
point out that it was merely a draft which would have to be put

into proper legal shape by a Commlttee of Exports.

Mr., KLEKOVKIN (Ukrainian S.S.R.) regrettod that the

Comniission had not devoted riore care and attention to its essential



E/CN4/SR/42
page 16

task of drafting the ftexts of a Declaration and a Convention

on Human Rights. In his view the Convention was lacking in
sincerity. It dealt with only one aspect of human rights and
completely disregarded economie rights such as trade union rights,
social insurance, the prevention of unemployment, etc., which

were the very foundation of all other rights. The Commissién

had forgotten that those instruments were intended for the great
nass of workers, whose views on life had changed considerably
since the ¥nrld Was, He was afraid that when the peoples becane
aware of the contents of the documents produced by the Cormission's
work they would take up a critical attitude and night even nake fun
of then., The rights covered by the Convention night be conpared
with the right of a negro to be taken to a police station just
like a white man, The Convention contained no guarantee of
protection against unemployment and econonice criscs. He feared
that in periods of economic depression the principles contained in
the present Convention on Human Rights night :ound hollow, The
Conventicn confirmed the truth of the expfession he had heard in
the United States: '"Men are free, but are dying cof hunger".

The conrmon nan was only interested in freedom of speech and
freedom cf the press, when he was protected against poverty; yet
the Ccnvention provided nc guarantee of material living conditions.
He concluded that the Comnission's work had been unproductive
because it had been unable to find a reans of harmonizing the

econcnic and the political rights of man.

The CHAIRMAN put {he draft Covenant on Human Rights to the

vote,



E/CN.4/SR/%2
page 17

Mr. DEHOUSSE (Belgiun) asked for a vote by roll call,
Decision: The Commission adopted the draft Covenant on Hunman

Rights by ten votes to four.,

The following voted in favour:  Belglum, China, Egypt,
France, India, Iran, Lebanon, the United Kingdom, the United

States of Anerica, Uruguay.

The following volied against: Byelorussian Soviet Socialist
Republic, Ukrainian Soviet Socialist Republic, the Union of

Soviet Socialist Republics, and Yugoslavia,

Absent:  Australia, Chile, Panama and the Philippines.

s s i —

The meeting rose at 12.25 a,n,





